
71                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

                NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

                                                                                                 (OCTOBER 1) (Week 40 of 2024) 

                                     
                                        Live streaming at:                                                  Agenda and Minutes available at:                                                              

                https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa                     www.woodburycountyiowa.gov 

            
                                                                     
      
 Daniel A. Bittinger II          Mark E. Nelson         Keith W. Radig        Jeremy J. Taylor        Matthew A. Ung                                               
           389-4405                         540-1259                     560-6542                     259-7910                        490-7852                               
dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov        mnelson@woodburycountyiowa.gov          kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov       jtaylor@woodburycountyiowa.gov       matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov            

 
You are hereby notified a meeting of the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors will be held October 1, 2024, at 
4:30 p.m.  in the Basement of the Courthouse, 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, Iowa for the purpose of taking 
official action on the agenda items shown hereinafter and for such other business that may properly come before 
the Board.   
 
This is a formal meeting during which the Board may take official action on various items of business. Members 
of the public wishing to speak on an item must follow the participation rules adopted by the Board of Supervisors. 
 

1. Please silence cell phones and other devices while in the Boardroom. 
2. The Chair may recognize speakers on agenda items after initial discussion by the Board. 
3. Speakers will approach the microphone one at a time and give their name and address before their statement. 
4. Speakers will limit their remarks to three minutes on any one item and address their remarks to the Board. 
5. At the beginning of discussion on any item, the Chair may request statements in favor of an action be heard first 

followed by statements in opposition to the action.  The Chair may also request delegates provide statements on 
behalf of multiple speakers. 

6. Any concerns or questions which do not relate to a scheduled item on the agenda will be heard under the item 
“Citizen Concerns.” Please note the Board is legally prohibited from taking action on or engaging in deliberation on 
concerns not listed on the agenda, and in such cases the Chair will request further discussion take place after 
properly noticed. 

7. Public comment by electronic or telephonic means is prohibited except for a particular agenda item when approved 
by the Chair 24 hours before a meeting or by a majority of the board during a meeting for a subsequent meeting. 

 

AGENDA 

                          
 
4:30 p.m.     Call Meeting to Order – Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag – Moment of Silence    
 
                     1.  Approval of the agenda                                                                                                  Action 
 

Consent Agenda 

 

Items 2 through 5 constitute a Consent Agenda of routine action items to be considered by one     

         motion.  Items pass unanimously unless a separate vote is requested by a Board Member. 

 

                    2.  Approval of the minutes of the September 24, 2024 meeting 

 

                    3.  Approval of claims  

 

                    4.  County Treasurer – Tina Bertrand 

                         a.  Approve property tax refund request for parcel #894729184021 in the amount of $318.00 

                         b.  Approve property tax refund request for parcel #894735167001 in the amount of $648.00 

 

                    5.  Human Resources – Melissa Thomas 

                         Approval of retiree request to remain on the County dental insurance 

 

https://www.youtube.com/user/woodburycountyiowa
http://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/
mailto:dbittinger@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:kradig@woodburycountyiowa.gov
mailto:matthewung@woodburycountyiowa.gov


 

                    End Consent Agenda 

 

                   6.  Board Administrator – Heather Van Sickle 

4:35 p.m.        a.  Public hearing and sale of property parcel #894726178006 (aka 900 Cornelia Street)   Action 

(Set time) 

4:37 p.m.        b.  Public hearing and sale of property parcel #894726177013 (aka 931 Cornelia Street)   Action 

(Set time) 

4:39 p.m.        c.  Public hearing and sale of property parcel #894726178011 (aka 917 Glass Street)       Action 

(Set time) 

4:41 p.m.        d.  Public hearing and sale of property parcel #894728102006 (aka 208 14th Street)          Action 

(Set time) 

 

                    7.  Planning/Zoning – Daniel Priestley 

4:45 p.m.         a.  Conduct the third and final public hearing on proposed revisions to Woodbury              Action 

(Set time)              County Ordinance #56, including amending Sections 5.2.D, 6.1.A, 6.2, 7, and  

                              7.1.C, which regulate Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems (C-WECS) 

                              in unincorporated Woodbury County. The amendments address changes to the  

                              C-WECS application process, submission requirements, siting and design standards,   

                              including setbacks, protected areas, setback waiver limitations, as well as updates to   

                              discontinuance and decommissioning plan requirements 

                        b.   Approval of the 3rd and final reading of the ordinance amendments   

                        c.   Adopt the ordinance amendments 

 

                   8.  SafePlace – Stephanie Pickinpaugh 

                        Approval of and presentation of proclamation for “Domestic Violence Awareness Month”   Action 

 

                  9.  Board of Supervisors – Mark Nelson & Keith Radig 

                       Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding addressing retention and                            Action 

                       recruitment in the County Attorney’s Office  

       

                10.  Secondary Roads – Mark Nahra 

                       a.  Approval of a federal aid replacement fund project agreement for project numbered        Action 

                            STP-S-C097(153)—5E-97 

                       b.  Approval of plans for project number STP-S-C097(153)—5E-97                                       Action 

                       c.  Approval of a federal aid replacement fund project agreement for project numbered        Action 

                            BROS—C097(150)—8J-97 

                       d.  Approval of plans for project number BROS-C097(150)—8J-97                                        Action 

 

                11.  Deputy County Auditor – Michelle Skaff 

                       Approve $50,000-$100,000 as a group purchase threshold retroactive to 7-1-23                  Action 

                       and direct Deputy Skaff to amend the fixed asset policy and bring back for 

                       board approval      

 

                12.  Board of Supervisors – Daniel Bittinger 

                       a.  Discussion about the future of Rolling Hills Services Region physical property        Information   

                       b.  Approval of Opioid Remediation Settlement request and proposal from Sky Ranch        Action 

                            Behavioral Services for 3 F.T.E. positions                                   

 

                13.  Reports on Committee Meetings                                                                                   Information   

 

 



  

               

                14.  Citizen Concerns                                                                                                          Information 

 

                15.  Board Concerns                                                                                                           Information     

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
Subject to Additions/Deletions 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

CALENDAR OF EVENTS                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

                                                                                                               
WED., OCT 2       4:45 p.m.    Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.  

THU., OCT 3      12:00 p.m.    SIMPCO Regional Policy & Legislative Affairs Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordan Drive  

MON., OCT 7       6:00 p.m.    Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom                                                   

WED., OCT 9       7:30 a.m.    SIMPCO Executive Finance Committee Meeting, 6401 Gordan Drive   

                             8:05 a.m.    Woodbury County Information Communication Commission, First Floor Boardroom 

                           10:00 a.m.    StarComm Board Meeting, The Security Institute, WIT Campus 

                           12:00 p.m.    District Board of Health Meeting, 1014 Nebraska St.                        

THU., OCT 10    12:00 p.m.    SIMPCO Board of Directors, 6401 Gordon Drive.                           

                             4:00 p.m.    Conservation Board Meeting, Brown’s Lake – Bigelow Park 

WED., OCT 16   10:30 a.m.    Western Iowa Tourism Region Meeting, LaunchPad Museum, 623 Pearl St. 

                          12:00 p.m.    Siouxland Economic Development Corporation Meeting, 617 Pierce St., Ste. 202 

                             4:30 p.m.    Community Action Agency of Siouxland Board Meeting, 2700 Leech Avenue   

WED., OCT 23     2:30 p.m.    Rolling Hills Community Services Region Governance Board Meeting 

MON., OCT 28     6:00 p.m.    Zoning Commission Meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom          

THU., OCT 24    11:00 a.m.    Siouxland Regional Transit Systems (SRTS) Board Meeting, SIMPCO Office, 1122 Pierce St.  

MON., NOV 4      6:00 p.m.     Board of Adjustment meeting, Courthouse Basement Boardroom 

WED., NOV 6    11:00 a.m.     Loess Hills Alliance Stewardship Meeting, Pisgah, Iowa  

                            1:00 p.m.     Loess Hills Alliance Executive Meeting 

                            4:45 p.m.     Veteran Affairs Meeting, Veteran Affairs Office, 1211 Tri-View Ave.  

 

  
Woodbury County is an Equal Opportunity Employer.  In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the County will consider reasonable accommodations 
for qualified individuals with disabilities and encourages prospective employees and incumbents to discuss potential accommodations with the Employer. 
 
Federal and state laws prohibit employment and/or public accommodation discrimination on the basis of age, color, creed, disability, gender identity, national origin, 
pregnancy, race, religion, sex, sexual orientation or veteran’s status. If you believe you have been discriminated against, please contact the Iowa Civil Rights 
Commission at 800-457-4416 or Iowa Department of Transportation’s civil rights coordinator. If you need accommodations because of a disability to access the Iowa 
Department of Transportation’s services, contact the agency’s affirmative action officer at 800-262-0003.     



SEPTEMBER 24, 2024, THIRTY-NINETH MEETING OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  
 
The Board of Supervisors met on Tuesday, September 24, 2024, at 4:30 p.m.  Board members present were Ung, Radig, 
Taylor, Bittinger II, and Nelson. Staff members present were Karen James, Board Administrative Assistant, Melissa Thomas, 
Human Resources Director, and Patrick Gill, Auditor/Clerk to the Board.  
 
The regular meeting was called to order with the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag and a Moment of Silence. 
 
1.  Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the agenda for September 24, 2024.  Carried 5-0.   Copy filed. 
 

Motion by Taylor second by Ung to approve the following items by consent: 
 
2.  To approve minutes of the September 17, 2024, meeting.  Copy filed. 
  
3.  To approve the claims totaling $775,406.60.  Copy filed. 
 
4.  To approve the separation of Cole Thomas, Summer Laborer, Secondary Roads Dept., effective 08-16-2024. End of 

Temp Work.; Separation of Andrew Devereux, Intern, County Attorney Dept., effective 08-16-24. End of Temp 
Work.; the appointment of Mansanwalpreet Singh, Assistant County Attorney, County Attorney Dept., effective 09-
30-2024. $79,069.00/year. Job Vacancy Posted on 03/26/2003. Entry Level Salary: $79,069.00/year.; the end of 
probation of Kyrese Peck, Motor Grader Operator, Secondary Roads Dept., effective 09-30-2024.  $28.18/hour. 
3%=$0.85/hr. End of Probationary Period. Move to Step 1. Anniversary Date 10/3/24.; the end of probation of John 
Gibson, Equipment Operator, Secondary Roads Dept. effective 09-30-24.  $27.88/hour. 3%=$0.84/hr. End of 
Probationary Period. Move to Step 1. Anniversary Date 10/3/24.; the separation of Jeff Davis, Youth Worker, 
Juvenile Detention Dept., effective 10-08-2024. Retired. Copy filed. 

 
4b. To approve and authorize the Chairperson to sign the Authorization to initiate the hiring process for Youth Worker 

– FT, Juvenile Detention. AFSCME Juvenile: $22.05/hour.  Copy filed.  
 
4c. To approve request of Debra Leckband to remain on the county dental insurance.  Copy filed. 
 
5. To approve to set the dates and times for 3 Public Hearings on a proposed Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment 

(rezone) of 1.14-acres located on Parcel #884726200002, Section 26, T88N R47W (Woodbury Township) from 
Agricultural Preservation (AP) to the Agricultural Estates (AE) Zoning District.  Tuesday, October 8, 2024, 4:45 PM., 
Tuesday, October 15, 2024, 4:45 PM., and Tuesday, October 22, 2024, 4:45 PM.  Copy filed. 

 
6. To approve the permit to work in the right of way for Barbara Leimer and to direct the chair to sign the permit.  

Copy filed. 
 
7. To approve renaming the Butler Meeting Room the “Dennis Butler Meeting Room”.  Copy filed. 
 
Carried 5-0. 
 
8. Motion by Radig second by Nelson to approve the allocation of $1,000 (Gaming Revenue) and 2 days (16 hours 

total) of paid time off for the employee contribution campaign.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 
 
9. Motion by Radig second by Bittinger to approve to reallocate $30,000 from EMS Extraction Equipment (ARPA20) to 

purchase two items - $15,681.80 for LifePak Monitor upgrades (APRA24) and $14,318.20 for a skid unit for a Grass 
Rig (ARPA25).  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
11a. Motion by Radig second by Ung to approve the resolution to revise the Woodbury County FY 2025 Five Year Road 

Construction Program.  Carried 5-0.   
 

2025 COUNTY FIVE YEAR PROGRAM RESOLUTION 
RESOLUTION #13,797 

WOODBURY COUNTY SECONDARY ROADS 
 



September 24, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 2 
 

 

 

 

 
Unforeseen circumstances have arisen since adoption of the approved Secondary Road Five Year Program and 
previous revisions, requiring changes to the sequence, funding, and timing of the proposed work plan. 

 
The Board of Supervisors of Woodbury County, Iowa, in accordance with Iowa Code section 309.22, initiates and 
recommends modification of the following project(s) in the accomplishment year (State Fiscal Year 2025), for 
approval by the Iowa Department of Transportation (Iowa DOT), per Iowa Code 309.23 and Iowa DOT Instructional 
Memorandum 2.050. 
 
The following projects shall be MODIFIED as follows: 

 

Project 
Number 
Name 

Project ID 

Project Location 
Description of 
Work 

AADT 
Length 
Bridge 
ID 

Type of Work 
Fund 

Modifications Total 

FM-C097(152)--55 -97 
D38 HMA 
Resurfacing 32655 

On D38, from 
County Route K64 E 
10.3 miles to IA 
Hwy 31 
HMA Resurfacing 
on D38 from 
Moville Blacktop to 
Hwy 31 

43 
10.400 miles 

366 HMA 
Paving FM 

added 600,000 FM dollars to 
2025 

$2,600,0
00 

 
 

 
Fund 

Accomplishment Year 

Previous Amount New Amount Net Change 

Local $1,700,000 $1,700,000 $0 

Farm-to-Market $3,397,000 $3,997,000 $600,000 

Special $2,000,000 $2,000,000 $0 

SWAP $200,000 $200,000 $0 

Federal Aid $4,603,000 $4,603,000 $0 

Totals $11,900,000 $12,500,000 $600,000 

 
So Dated this 24th Day of September, 2024 
WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
Copy filed. 

 
11b. Motion by Taylor second by Ung to award the quote for a used tracked skid steer loader to Sooland Bob Cat for 

$28,000.00.  Carried 5-0. 
  
10a. The public hearing on proposed revisions to the Woodbury County Ordinance was opened. 
 
 Ron Steinhoff, Smithland, David Cooper, Moville, Chuck Hoelker, Kingsley, Daniel Hair, Hornick, Steve Corey, Salix, 

Jana Martens, Moville, Doyle Turner, Moville, Jacob Joliet, Urbandale, Larry Filipi, Anthon, Roger Wilcox, Pierson 
and Robin Schiro, Elk Point SD, addressed the Board in regard to the proposed revisions. 

 
 Motion by Taylor second by Ung to receive a letter read into the record by Bittinger.  Carried 5-0.  Copy Filed. 
 

Motion by Ung second by Taylor to close the public hearing.  Carried 5-0 
 
 



September 24, 2024 Cont’d.                                                                                                                                                              Page 3 
 

 

 

 

10b. Motion by Ung second by Taylor to approve the second reading on proposed revisions to the Woodbury County 
Ordinance #56, including amending Sections 5.2D, 6.1.A, 6.2, 7, and 7.1C, which regulate Commercial Wind Energy 
Conversion Systems (C-WECS) in unincorporated Woodbury County.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
12. Michelle Skaff, Deputy County Auditor, provided a budget review.  Copy filed. 
 
 Motion by Ung second by Taylor to receive supporting information related to the Budget review.  Carried 5-0.  

Copy filed. 
 
13. Motion by Taylor second by Radig to approve the purchase of equipment for CJIS dual authentication up to 

$15,000.00 that was not included in the FY25 budget and to use at least $4,392.98 of ARPA funds to fund the 
purchase.  Carried 5-0.  Copy filed. 

 
14. Reports on committee meetings were heard. 
 
15. Trevor Bass, Sioux City, commented on ongoing discussions regarding staffing shortages in the county attorney’s 

office. 
 
16. Board concerns were heard. 
 
 There was a consensus to place an item on the agenda for next week for a proposed MOU to deal with staffing 

shortages in the county attorney’s office. 
 
The Board adjourned the regular meeting until October 1, 2024. 
  
Meeting sign in sheet.  Copy filed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 







































WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:   

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing    Other:  Informational      Attachments    ✔

✔✔

A) Conduct the third and final public hearing on proposed revisions to Woodbury County Ordinance #56, including amending Sections
5.2.D, 6.1.A, 6.2, 7, and 7.1.C, which regulate Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems (C-WECS) in unincorporated Woodbury
County. The amendments address changes to the C-WECS application process, submission requirements, siting and design standards,
including setbacks, protected areas, setback waiver limitations, as well as updates to discontinuance and decommissioning
requirements. B) Motion to approve the 3rd and Final Reading of the Ordinance Amendments. C) Adopt the Ordinance Amendments.

The People of Woodbury County (the “County”), as reflected in the County Comprehensive Plan 2040 (the “Comp Plan”), expect the County to scrutinize policies
that could significantly impact their long-term prosperity, including health, safety, and welfare. The Comp Plan sets a goal to “plan for the creation and use of
alternative and renewable energy sources in Woodbury County” (p. 127). However, it also emphasizes the need to “continuously update policies that regulate
renewable energy infrastructure to ensure that it does not present safety hazards and to minimize disruptions to surrounding land uses.”

Since the passage of Ordinance #56, which regulates commercial wind energy conversion systems (C-WECS) in unincorporated Woodbury County in July 2021,
there has been significant public input. Residents have raised concerns about potential dangers that could impact their communities including those considered in
subsequent amendments adopted in August 2022 and May 2023. New information about the safety ratings of wind turbines has continued to raise concerns among
residents not limited to data presented in safety data sheets.

On April 17, 2024, a town hall meeting hosted by the Woodbury County Board of Supervisors and the Lawton City Council members was held in Lawton, IA. The
meeting covered various topics, including C-WECS regulations. Attendees expressed concerns about safety, long-term agreements, and property values (Woodbury
“Lawton,” 2024). Following the meeting, a petition with over 160 signatures was submitted on August 6, 2024, requesting the Board of Supervisors to revisit the
regulations outlined in Ordinance #56. The petition includes the following statement:

"We the people of Woodbury County demand the county’s commercial wind ordinance be relevant based on information readily available. We believe new
information makes our current ordinance no longer relevant and needs to be updated. We, the undersigned would like to see, at a minimum, the following issues
addressed: ½ mile or at least 4.5x tower height(TH) whichever is greater from a non-participating property line, 2.5x TH from a participating residence, 3 miles from a
town, county park, and airports, 40 decibels max for sound, complete removal of all concrete, metal, and wires for decommissioning, and mandatory bolstering of
county roads and infrastructure prior to any construction" (Woodbury “Petition,” 2024).

The role of these proposed amendments is to establish a balance that continues to keep in mind the public health, safety, and general welfare of the People of
Woodbury County in terms of the location, operation, and decommissioning of commercial wind projects.

References:
Woodbury County Board of Supervisors. (2024, April 17). Lawton Town Hall part 1 of 2
[Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=vYObe3e8hJk

Woodbury County Board of Supervisors. (2024, April 17). Lawton Town Hall part 2 of 2
[Video]. YouTube. https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=V-WPdTjx6S8

Woodbury County Board of Supervisors. (2024, August 6). Petition. Agenda Item 12: Citizens
concerns. Woodbury County, Iowa. https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/meeting_assets/citizens_concerns_2024-08-
06_64181.pdf

Woodbury County Board of Supervisors. (2024, August 6). Minutes of the Woodbury County
Board of Supervisors meeting. Woodbury County, Iowa. https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/supervisors/meetings/minutes/2024-08-06/

Woodbury County Comprehensive Plan 2040. https://www.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/
woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED REVISIONS TO WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA ORDINANCE #56: AMENDMENTS TO MODIFY
SECTION 5.2.D, SECTION 6.1.A, SECTION 6.2, SECTION 7, AND SECTION 7.1.C IN THE ORDINANCE REGULATING
COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION SYSTEMS IN UNINCORPORATED WOODBURY COUNTY. THE AMENDMENTS
TO THE REFERENCED SECTIONS INCLUDE MODIFICATIONS TO THE COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION
SYSTEMS SPECIAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS INCLUDING APPLICATION
SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS, SITING AND DESIGN STANDARDS INCLUDING SETBACKS, WIND TURBINES PROTECTED
AREAS AND TURBINE SET BACK REQUIREMENTS AND SETBACK WAIVERS REQUIREMENTS, AND DISCONTINUANCE
AND DECOMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS.

Daniel J. Priestley

10/1/24 4:459/25/24



FINANCIAL IMPACT:

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes ☐☐ No       ☐☐

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

A) Conduct the third and final public hearing on proposed revisions to Woodbury County Ordinance #56, including amending Sections 5.2.D,
6.1.A, 6.2, 7, and 7.1.C, which regulate Commercial Wind Energy Conversion Systems (C-WECS) in unincorporated Woodbury County. The
amendments address changes to the C-WECS application process, submission requirements, siting and design standards, including setbacks,
protected areas, setback waiver limitations, as well as updates to discontinuance and decommissioning requirements.

B) Motion to approve the 3rd and Final Reading of the Ordinance Amendments.

C) Adopt the Ordinance Amendments.

Open and close the public hearing. (Set Time: 4:45 PM)

Conduct and approve the 3rd and Final Reading of the Ordinance Amendment.

Adopt the Ordinance Amendments.

0



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING PORTIONS OF WOODBURY COUNTY ORDINANCE #56: 
AMENDMENTS TO MODIFY SECTION 5.2.D, SECTION 6.1.A, SECTION 6.2, SECTION 7, AND 
SECTION 7.1.C IN THE ORDINANCE REGULATING COMMERCIAL WIND ENERGY CONVERSION 
SYSTEMS IN UNINCORPORATED WOODBURY COUNTY. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY 
COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENTS BE MADE: 
 
AMENDMENT #1 – Section 5.2.D 
 
On page 6, to repeal the following language from Section 5.2.D: 
 

Project details, including the name of the project, anticipated number, generating capacity, tower 
height, and rotor diameter of the turbines must be provided with the Development Plan. The final 
number, generating capacity, tower height, and rotor diameter must be provided in the Final 
Development Plan during the C-WECS Building Permit application process. 

 
On page 6, to replace with the following: 
 

Project details, including the name of the project, the final number, generating capacity, tower 
height, rotor diameter of the turbines, and the Safety Instruction Rescue and Evacuation Plan 
(SIREP) from the C-WECS manufacturer must be provided in the Development Plan. The final 
number, generating capacity, tower height, and rotor diameter of the turbines, and SIREP from 
the C-WECS manufacturer must be provided in the Final Development Plan during the C-WECS 
Building Permit application process. 

 
AMENDMENT #2 – Section 6.1.A 
 
On page 10, Section 6.1.A, in the “Wind Turbines” table to add “Non-participating Property Lines” to the 
“Protected Area” column and add “3,280 feet” to the “Turbine Set Back Requirement” column associated 
with the “Non-participating Property Lines” protected area.   
 
AMENDMENT #3 – Section 6.1.A 
 
On page 10, Section 6.1.A, in the “Wind Turbines” table to repeal the “Adjacent Property Lines” in the 
“Protected Area” column and replace with “Adjacent Participating Property Lines“ with the “Turbine Set 
Back Requirement” column associated with the “Adjacent Participating Property Lines” to be “110% of 
total height.” 
 
AMENDMENT #4 – Section 6.1.A 
 
On page 10, Section 6.1.A, in the “Wind Tubines” table to repeal “Occupied Residence” in the “Protected 
Area” column and replace with “Participating Occupied Residence” with the “Turbine Set Back 
Requirement” column associated with the “Participating Occupied Residence” to be “2,500 feet.” 
 



 

 

AMENDMENT #5 – Section 6.1.A 
 
On page 10, Section 6.1.A, below the “Wind Tubines” table to add the following definition: 
 

1. Non-participating Property Lines shall mean the legal boundary line defining any parcel of land 
where the landowner(s) of the parcel has not entered into a voluntary agreement with the 
Applicant, Operator, and/or Owner regarding the C-WECS project regardless of the presence of a 
residence. 

 
AMENDMENT #6 – Section 6.2 
 
On page 11, to repeal the following language from Section 6.2: 
 

Setback Waivers. Property owners and municipalities may request a waiver from the setbacks as 
established in this Ordinance, except for the following protected areas: airports, cemeteries, 
public conservation areas, and public road rights-of-way. 

 
On page 11, to replace with the following: 
 

Setback Waivers. Property owners and municipalities may request a waiver from the setbacks as 
established in this ordinance, except for the following protected areas: airports, cemeteries, public 
conservation areas, adjacent participating property lines, and public road rights-of-way. A waiver 
for a participating occupied residence may not be less than 1,640 feet. 

 
AMENDMENT #7 – Section 7 
 
On page 12, to repeal the following language from Section 7: 
 

A WECS shall be considered a discontinued use after one (1) year without energy production, 
unless a plan is developed and submitted to the CED Director outlining the steps and schedule 
for returning the WECS to service. Discontinued use does not apply to the pre-construction or 
construction period and shall be measured from the initial commercial energy production and 
operation of the C-WECS project. All C-WECS and accessory facilities shall be removed to a 
depth of four (4) feet below ground level within one (1) year of discontinuation of use. 

 
On page 12, to replace with the following: 
 

A WECS shall be considered a discontinued use after one (1) year without energy production. 
The owner/operator will have one (1) year following this determination to decommission and 
remove the WECS at the owner’s expense. If the WECS is not removed during the one (1) year 
period, the County may pursue legal action against the owner. Discontinued use does not apply 
to the pre-construction or construction period and shall be measured from the initial commercial 
energy production and operation of the C-WECS project. All C-WECS and accessory facilities 
shall be removed completely to include all concrete, steel, rebar, wires, and cable below ground 
within one (1) year of discontinuation of use.    

 
AMENDMENT #8 – Section 7.1.C 
 
On page 12, to repeal the following language from Section 7.1.C: 
 

Cash, an irrevocable letter of credit, or a performance bond running in favor of the County in an 
amount no less than the total estimated net removal/restoration costs as determined by said 
report. Said security must be in place at the time the project is completed, and must remain in 
effect until decommissioning is completed. No such security shall be cancelable without notice to 
the Board of Supervisors. Each year, the C-WECS Special Use Permit holder shall provide proof 



 

 

that such security is in effect at the same time as the annual report to the County Assessor is 
made for purposes of the real estate tax assessment. 

 
On page 12, to replace with the following: 
 

Cash, an irrevocable letter of credit, or a performance bond running in favor of the County in an 
amount no less than 125% of the total estimate net removal/restoration costs as determined by 
said report. Said security must be in place at the time the project is completed, and must remain 
in effect until decommissioning is completed. No such security shall be cancelable without notice 
to the Board of Supervisors. Each year, the C-WECS Special Use Permit Holder shall provide 
proof that such security is in effect at the same time as the annual report to the County Assessor 
is made for purposes of the real estate tax assessment. 

 
 
Adopted this____ day of ______, 2024 
 
THE WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

______________________________ 
Matthew Ung, Chairman 

 
______________________________ 
Daniel Bittinger II, Vice Chairman 

 
______________________________ 
Mark Nelson 

 
______________________________ 
Keith Radig 
 

______________________________ 
Jeremy Taylor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Patrick Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 
 
 
Adoption Timeline 
_________: Public Hearing and 1st Reading 
_________: Public Hearing and 2nd Reading 
_________: Public Hearing and 3rd Reading 
_________: Adopted 
_________: Published/Effective Date 



 

 

 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA 

        RESOLUTION NO. ______ 
_  _ _  

  

PROCLAMATION 

WHEREAS, domestic violence is a serious crime affecting individuals and families 

in all Siouxland communities; all races, ages, income levels, lifestyles and genders; 

and in fact, is probably affecting someone you know; and every 9 seconds someone 

experiences the crime of domestic violence; and 

WHEREAS, one in three women and one in nine men will be a victim of 

violence in their lifetime; domestic violence violates an individual’s human rights by 

destroying dignity, security, and self-worth due to the systematic use of physical, 

emotional, sexual, psychological, and economic control or abuse; SafePlace works 

every day to help end these acts of violence and to help rebuild the lives of the 

survivors; and 

WHEREAS, in Siouxland, SafePlace is available 24 hours a day every day of the 

year and last year responded to nearly 2000 victims fleeing domestic abuse and 

despite high census and a global pandemic, no one in an unsafe situation was 

turned away; and 

WHEREAS, the impact of domestic violence affects all of the members of the 

community, and only a coordinated community response will put a stop to these 

atrocious crimes and assure funding is continuously available to provide these life-

saving services; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, Woodbury County Board of Supervisors, do hereby 

proclaim the month of October, 2024 as 

“DOMESTIC VIOLENCE AWARENESS MONTH” 

  in Woodbury County, Iowa and urge all citizens to actively participate in the scheduled  

           events and programs and to think about the fact that it is someone you know. 

 

BE IT SO RESOLVED this 1rd day of October, 2024. 

 

WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

 

______________________________               _____________________________ 

Matthew A. Ung, Chairman                            Mark E. Nelson, Member 

 

___________________________                __________________________ 

Jeremy J. Taylor, Member                             Keith W. Radig, Member 

 

                                  ____________________________ 

                                       Daniel A. Bittinger II, Member 

 

Attest: 

_________________________________ 

Patrick F. Gill, Woodbury County Auditor 



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

9/25/2024 10/1/2024

Supervisor Nelson and Radig

✔

✔

Approval of the Memorandum of Understanding addressing retention and recruitment in the 
County Attorney's Office

The Board of Supervisors approved a motion to draft an MOU regarding the staffing issues in the County 
Attorney's Office.

on 8/6 Board Begins MOU process. 8/13 Board approves 1st MOU which was later voted down by the union, 
9/17 Board appoints Nelson and Radig to further negociate MOU, 9/18 Nelson and Radig recieve an amended 
MOU. Supervisors Nelson and Radig have made revisions to the Attorney's amended MOU which is being 
presented here today.

Dependant on if or when the department could reach full staffing. The impact will not be anything that requires 
a budget amendment because of the shortfall in staffing. 

Approve the MOU

Motion to approve the MOU with the Attorney's Union to incentivise new hires and retain existing employees. 

























































WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________     Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________  

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED: 

   Approve Resolution   ☐        Approve Motion   ☐ Approve Ordinance    ☐  

Public Hearing   ☐      Other:  Informational  ☐      Attachments   ☐ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 

PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:  

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016. 

09-26-24 10-1-24

Michelle Skaff - Deputy Auditor

✔

✔

Discuss and set threshold for group purchases

Effective 7-1-23, a new auditing standard requires group purchases to be logged as capital expenditures. The 
threshold amount needs to be set by the board. 

na

No financial impact - in our annual audit this will show on the Statement of Net Position and Statement of 
Activities, it would decrease the expense and increase our assets in the financial report,

Discuss and determine a threshold for group purchases. An amount between $50,000-$100,000 is 
recommended.  

Motion by --- second by --- to approve $xxx,xxx as a group purchase threshold retroactive to 7-1-2023 and 
direct Deputy Skaff to amend the fixed asset policy and bring back for board approval.   



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

09/26/2024 10/01/2024

Supervisor Bittinger

 With the realiagnment of the behavorial health services in Iowa, the mental health districts are being dissovled. After July 1, 2025 
the mental health regions will not be able to hold physical properties. 

From Rolling Hills Community Service Region and also Chief Executive Officer, Dawn Mentzer:

"Hello County Supervisors;
As part of the original Rolling Hills 28E, I am requesting your input as the Governance Board needs to make a decision regarding
disposition of the Turning Point(Sac City) and Crisis Center properties in Sioux City. With the Regions sunsetting on 7/1/25, the
Region cannot be the property owner and the providers would like a decision made soon so that they can move forward with
continuing to provide the crisis services that the Region assisted in the development. We are looking at either deeding the property
to the providers for the greater good of maintaining the services or possibly selling at a very low cost. Section 3.4 is contained in
the 28 E as listed below:

3.4 Distribution of Assets. In the event this Agreement is terminated and the Region is dissolved, all property of the Region
shall be delivered, assigned and conveyed to the member counties, by population to each member county. Any real property that
needs to be acquired or disposed of shall be completed at the discretion of the Governing Board.
The foregoing notwithstanding, in the event any asset real property owned by the Region is sold, the member counties that
contributed to the cost to purchase or improve that property shall first be reimbursed their respective contribution from the proceeds
of such sale. Any proceeds remaining after such reimbursement shall be divided between all member counties."

Discussion about the future of Rolling Hill Services Region physical property.

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

Woodbury County was part of a 10 counties that contributed to the purchase of the physical properties that the region holds.

It would need to be determined if the county wants to recoup that investment or donate the buildings to the service providers: so,
that mental health services continue in the community with adding financial strain to the service providers.

n/a

n/a



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM 

Date:    _________________         Weekly Agenda Date:     ______________ 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

BACKGROUND: 

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:       ____________________________________ 

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:    

ACTION REQUIRED:

   Approve Resolution         Approve Motion   Approve Ordinance

Public Hearing                Other:  Informational      Attachments    

09/26/2024 10/01/2024

Supervsr. Bittinger/Anna Bertrand

On February 13, 2024, Anna Bertrand presented that Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) is requesting two years of funding in
the amount of $242,648 per year ($485,296 over a two-year period) to fund 3 F.T.E. positions in alignment with the recommended
Opioid Remediation Settlement approved uses guidelines.

Today's agenda item is to determine the exact amount of funding for the proposal from Sky Ranch Behavioral Services.

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) is requesting two years of funding in the amount of $242,648 per year ($485,296 over a
two-year period). SRBS is requesting funding to support and address two key needs and priorities in the Siouxland area. 1.
Connecting Individuals to Care and Addressing the Needs of Criminal Justice Involved Persons, and 2. Supporting People in
Treatment and Recovery with Peer Recovery Services. Both areas of focus are highlighted priorities in the Opioid Remediation
Funding Guidance in Part I Treatment, Items B, C, and D.

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) will implement access and connections to care for the general community of Woodbury
County and for individuals (youth and adults) who are Criminal Justice Involved. This is a critical need for Woodbury County based
on current substance use trends and the increasing crisis in mental health for youth and adults.

See backup materials.

Opioid Remediation Settlement Request and Proposal from Sky Ranch Behavioral Services for 3
F.T.E. positions.

✔

✔



FINANCIAL IMPACT:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK 
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE? 

Yes     ☐            No       ☐ 

RECOMMENDATION:    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.  

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) is requesting two years of funding in the amount of $242,648 per year ($485,296 over a 
two-year period) to fund 3 positions per year, program materials, certifications, technology needs, etc. 

The Opioid Remediation Settlement Fund has approximately $1,000,549.88 at this moment(09/24/2024). If the full two-year amount 
is awarded, the new balance would be approximately $515,253.88

See backup materials for a detailed breakdown of funding needs. 

Fund 75% of one year of the request. This would result in $181,986 of funding. 

Approve funding Sky Ranch Behavorial Services request in the amount of $181,986.



 

  
 

1 
 

Woodbury County Board of Supervisors 

Request for Funding- Opioid Remediation Settlement Funding 

Creating Access/Connections to Care and Peer Recovery Support Services  

Proposed by Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) 

Draft Revised: 2/1/2024 

Proposal Narrative 

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) is requesting two years of funding in the amount of 

$242,648 per year ($485,296 over a two-year period). SRBS is requesting funding to support and address 

two key needs and priorities in the Siouxland area. 1. Connecting Individuals to Care and Addressing the 

Needs of Criminal Justice Involved Persons, and 2. Supporting People in Treatment and Recovery with 

Peer Recovery Services.  Both areas of focus are highlighted priorities in the in the Opioid Remediation 

Funding Guidance in Part I Treatment, Items B, C, and D. 

1. Connections to Care and/or Addressing the Needs to Criminal Justice Involved Persons with 

Opioid Use Disorder, Substance Use Disorder, Co-Occurring Disorder.  (Opioid Remediation 

Priority Part 1 Treatment Items C & D) 

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) will implement access and connections to care for the general 

community of Woodbury County and for individuals (youth and adults) who are Criminal Justice 

Involved. This is a critical need for Woodbury County based on current substance use trends and the 

increasing crisis in mental health for youth and adults.  Many youth and adults do not receive access to 

substance use disorder and/or mental health care due to one or more of the following reasons: 

• Lack of knowledge about how to access care. 

• Challenges navigating the current substance use disorder and/or mental health system of care 

due to barriers related to insurance, shortage of addiction and mental health professionals, 

youth struggling to get parental resources to support care, and overall stigma about addressing 

substance use or mental health issues.  

• Crisis- when individuals are faced with crisis in substance use or mental health, it is often difficult 

to navigate the complex system of care. 

• Limited options to access help or resources after school and/or in the evenings. 

SRBS will launch an open access, walk in access and navigation service for a minimum of 15 hours per 

week, including at least one evening and/or weekend access day for connecting youth, adults, and/or 

families to SUD care.  Proposed open access hours include: Mondays and Wednesdays from 2 until 6 PM, 

Thursdays from 3 PM until 8 PM, and/or Saturdays from 10 AM until 12 PM.  In addition, SRBS will 

provide phone-based support for individuals needing resources and/or questions answered regarding 



 

  
 

2 
 

accessing substance use and/or mental health care.  In addition, SRBS will provide both open access and 

scheduled SUD assessment services for individuals wanting to access care.  Within six months of 

implementation, SRBS will also offer open access and scheduled mental health assessment services for 

individuals wanting to access care. 

Open access, phone, and scheduled navigation services will include: 

o Answering questions and providing general information about substance use and/or mental 

health issues. 

o Education about how to respond in an opioid crisis, substance use crisis, and mental health crisis 

o General screening for safety, substance use, and mental health. 

o Assistance and support with navigating the steps to access substance use and/or mental health 

care for youth, adults, and/or family members. 

o Assistance with understanding the steps and navigating substance use and/or mental health 

commitments. 

o Providing connections to community-based and culturally responsive resources to support 

individuals with substance use and/or mental health issues. 

o Provision of both online and community-based resources, including referral and warm-handoff. 

o Delivering walk in and scheduled substance use disorder assessments. Mental health 

assessments to be added within six months. 

Connections to Care via access and navigation services will be provided by a full time Substance Use and 

Mental Health Access Navigator who will be a Certified Alcohol and Drug Counselor (CADC) with 

expertise in substance use and co-occurring mental health issues. They will allocate their time between 

open access/ walk in services, phone consultation, and individual navigation and assessment services. 

This person will provide phone, in-person, and community-based access and navigation support. 

2. Support People in Treatment and Recovery with Peer Recovery Services (Opioid Remediation 

Priority Part 1 Treatment Items C & D) 

SRBS will launch peer recovery services in two specific populations: 

• Peer Recovery Support Specialist to serve youth up to 17 years of age; and,  

• Peer Recovery Support Specialist to serve adults identified in the Woodbury Family 

Treatment Court. 

SRBS will recruit and hire (2.0 FTE) peer recovery support specialists who will provide outreach 

and engagement in the community, homes, and schools. The identified populations are those 

experiencing substance use, mental health, and/or co-occurring issues and symptoms. The role of the 

peer recovery support specialists will be to provide advocacy, support in navigating and/or accessing the 

resources and options within the recovery community, and to help address basic needs in order to 

enhance their overall wellness.  “When one rises, we all rise,” which serves as the motto of the former 

National Association of Drug Court Professionals (NADCP), now All Rise.  The value of increasing the 



 

  
 

3 
 

number of peer recovery supports in our community has demonstrated a reduction in hospital admission 

rates and longer community tenure (Chinman, Weingarten, Stayner, & Davidson, 2001; Davidson, et  al., 

2012; Forchuk, Martin, Chan, & Jenson, 2005; Min, Whitecraft, Rothbard, Salzer,  2007), as well as 

decreased symptoms of psychosis, depression, and substance use (Davidson, et  al., 2012).  The benefit 

of Peer Recovery Support for our community is vast. 

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS) is uniquely qualified to support the supervision of the Peer 

Recovery Supports, as the agency has expertise in an outpatient, community-based substance use and 

mental health services provider setting.  While SRBS serves youth, adults, and families, specialized 

outreach and services are focused on school aged youth in area schools and that are justice-involved 

youth.   

According to SAMHSA, “peer support workers are people who have been successful in the 

recovery process and who help others experiencing similar situations.  Through shared understanding, 

respect, and mutual empowerment, peer support workers help people become and stay engaged in the 

recovery process and reduce the likelihood of relapse".  https://www.samhsa.gov/brss-tacs/recovery-support-

tools/peers#:~:text=Peer%20support%20workers%20are%20people,reduce%20the%20likelihood%20of%20relapse  

The goal will be offering support for the identified population to engage in recommended 

treatment services, in community-based substance use, mental health, and/or co-occurring disorders 

services. Individuals who are impacted by opioid use will be prioritized; however, any person with any 

substance use and/or mental health symptoms will be served.  In addition to outreach, education, 

screening and engagement, peer recovery support specialists will provide recovery support services to 

individuals who are engaged in outpatient and/or inpatient substance use disorder treatment, mental 

health therapy, and/or co-occurring services.  With this in mind, some additional goals/tasks of recovery 

coaches are to help improve participation and engagement in treatment interventions through peer 

recovery coaching, help with transportation to services, provide outreach, and to facilitate engagement 

in recovery support activities in the community.   

Eligibility for the Peer Recovery Support Specialist positions would be individuals who are an 

adult (18 or older) who have been free from substance use for a minimum of 12 months and have lived 

recovery experience in substance use and/or mental health recovery.  

“Peer Support Specialists bring their own personal knowledge of what it is like to live and thrive 

with mental health conditions and substance use disorders.  They support people’s progress 

towards recovery and self-determined lives by sharing vital experiential information and real 

examples of the power of recovery.  The sense of mutuality created through thoughtful sharing of 

experience is influential in modeling recovery and offering hope (Davidson, Bellamy, Guy, & Miller, 

2012).  

SRBS proposes to outreach to a minimum of 120 individuals per 12-month calendar year and a 

minimum of 90 individuals per year will be formally enrolled in peer recovery support services.   

https://www.samhsa.gov/brss-tacs/recovery-support-tools/peers#:~:text=Peer%20support%20workers%20are%20people,reduce%20the%20likelihood%20of%20relapse
https://www.samhsa.gov/brss-tacs/recovery-support-tools/peers#:~:text=Peer%20support%20workers%20are%20people,reduce%20the%20likelihood%20of%20relapse


 

  
 

4 
 

Sustainability will be achieved within two years through certification as an outpatient mental 

health and/or substance use peer recovery support provider through IHHS with certification from the 

Iowa Board of Certification or other designated entity.  SRBS is well positioned to do this based on being 

an established IHHS licensed substance-use disorder provider and certified outpatient mental health 

services provider.   

About Sky Ranch Behavioral Services (SRBS)  

Sky Ranch Behavioral Services opened in 1987 as Sky Ranch for Boys to provide aftercare 

services to juveniles reentering the Siouxland community from their treatment facility. Since the physical 

ranch’s closure in 2011, the agency rebranded as SRBS and continues to provide behavioral health 

services. In 2019, SRBS added Substance Use and Problem Gambling Disorders Outpatient Treatment for 

adolescents and adults. In 2023, SRBS achieved certification as an Outpatient Mental Health Services 

provider. The current focus is on helping youth improve their lives with expansive and new community-

based programs of education classes, prevention/diversion, groups, individual and family counseling. 

Outcomes focus on reduced substance use and enhanced mental health, coping skills, functioning, and 

overall well-being.  SRBS is led by executive director Anna Bertrand.  Siouxland Human Investment 

Partnership (SHIP) serves as the employer of record and fiscal agent for SRBS. 

Budget 

Two Year Budget Proposal  

Line Items Year 1 Year 2 

Peer Recovery Specialist (2.0 FTE) $17 per hour at = $35,360 @ 2 
years = $70,720 

  

Supervisor, TBA Individual and Group Supervision .25 FTE of 
$56,000 = $14,000  

  

Substance Use and Mental Health Access Navigator 1.0 FTE @ 
$48,000  

  

Total Personnel  $132,720 $132,720 

Fringe Benefits and Employer of Record 45% of total Salaries = 
$64,369 

  

Total Fringe Benefits $64,369 $64,369 

Office Space for 3.0 FTE and Open Access Hub for a minimum of 
15 hours per week ($600 @ 12 months)  

  

Total Office Space $7,200 $7,200 

Office Supplies $500 per year   

Technology $1000 per year @ 3.0 =$3,000   

Total Supplies & Technology $3,500 $3,500 

Transportation and Parking -Parking and Mileage for staff 
transporting participants to recovery support $5,000 

  

Total Transportation $5,000 $5,000 



 

  
 

5 
 

Training, Continuing Education, Certification for Peer Recovery 
Sustainability $3,000 

  

Total Training & Sustainability $3,000 $3,000 

Basic and Emergent Needs for Participants (food, emergency 
needs, school supplies, recovery support tools) $2,400 

  

Resources to Support Navigation and Access (filing fees, 
transportation, emergency co-pays) $2,400 

  

Total Program Supplies/ Basic Needs $4,800 $4,800 

Total Expenses $220,589 $220,589 

Indirect/ Administration – Fiscal Agent Services provided by 
Siouxland Human Investment Partnership (SHIP) (de minimus rate 
which equals 10% of total expenses $220,589)  

  

Total Indirect $22,059 $22,059 

Total $242,648 $242,648 

 

 


	Insert from: "10-1-24_3rd_Public_Hearing_Reading_Amendments_Ordinance_56.pdf"
	Barker_Addition_Minor_Subdivsion_Report.pdf
	Barker Subdivision.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-01
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-02
	Barker Subdivision-Final Plat-22.5x24.5-03



	Bookmarks from final plat-yockey 4-4-24.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model

	FINAL PLAT-SHT 2.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	Model





